
Agenda for May 18, 2021 Planning Commission Meeting 

Posted at Town Hall, 175 E. Third Street and the Palisade Civic Center, 341 West 7th Street 

On or Before May 14, 2021 

AGENDA 
for the Planning Commission 

of the Town of Palisade, Colorado 
341 W. 7th Street (Palisade Civic Center) 

May 18, 2021 

6:00 pm Regular and Virtual Meeting  with In-Person Seating  
 
 

I. REGULAR MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 6:00 pm 
 
 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 

III. ROLL CALL 
 
 

IV. AGENDA ADOPTION 
 
 

V. ANNOUNCEMENTS / PRESENTATIONS 
 

A. PUBLIC COMMENT REMINDER: All emails sent to the Planning Technician for public 
comment on a specific agenda item prior to the day packets are published will be included in the 
staff report. Emails received after the packets are posted will be forwarded to the Planning 
Commission. Any member of the public who wishes to have a statement or email read into the 
Minutes is required to appear (virtually or in-person)  at the meeting and make said statements to 
the Commission directly. 
 

B. The Town of Palisade has a NEW WEBSITE!  palisade.colorado.gov 
 

C. Town Hall Offices NOW OPEN TO THE PUBLIC: Monday – Friday, 8:30 am – 4:30 pm 
 

D. PALISADE FARMERS MARKET: Sunday June 6, 2021, 9:30 am – 1:30 pm 
 

 
VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
A. Minutes from May 4, 2021, Regular Planning Commission Meeting 

 
 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT – For items not on the Public Hearing agenda 
Please keep comments to 3 minutes or less, and state your name and address. Neither the Planning 
Commissioners nor staff will respond to comments at this time. The Commission may direct staff to look 
into specific comments to bring back as an Agenda item at a future meeting. 
 
 

https://palisade.colorado.gov/


Agenda for May 18, 2021 Planning Commission Meeting 

Posted at Town Hall, 175 E. Third Street and the Palisade Civic Center, 341 West 7th Street 

On or Before May 14, 2021 

VIII. PUBLIC HEARING 
The following items will be presented before the Planning Commission of the Town of Palisade for their 
consideration. The Planning Commission will formulate a recommendation, which will be forwarded to 
the Board of Trustees of the Town of Palisade. For those items for which the Planning Commission retains 
Decision Maker status, they will weigh the options and cast a vote.  
 

A. PRO 2021-8 – TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE LAND DEVELOMENT CODE  
TABLE 6.1 – USE TABLE 
The Planning Commission will consider text amendments to the Land Development Code and 
Table 6.1 Use Table relating to warehouse, storage, manufacturing, and research and 
development uses as well as amendments to allowed uses within the TC (Town Center) zone 
district.  The Planning Commission shall review the application and forward its recommendation 
to the Board of Trustees for consideration. 
 

1. Staff Presentation 
2. Applicant Presentation 
3. Public Comment (Please limit comments to three (3) minutes, state your name and 

address) 
4. Commission Discussion 
5. Applicant Closing Remarks 
6. Decision (motion, second, roll call vote) 

 
IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
X. NEW BUSINESS 

 
XI. ADJOURNMENT 

  



Agenda for May 18, 2021 Planning Commission Meeting 

Posted at Town Hall, 175 E. Third Street and the Palisade Civic Center, 341 West 7th Street 

On or Before May 14, 2021 

 
 

TOP Planning Commission Regular Scheduled Virtual Meeting Electronic 
Participation Instructions 

Due to the rise in COVID-19 (coronavirus) cases in Mesa County, the Town of Palisade has 
decided to continue virtual public attendance at meetings with limited in-person seating in 

accordance with current restrictions 
 
 

Regular meeting starts at 6:00 pm 
 
https://zoom.us/j/3320075780 
 
Meeting ID Number: 332 007 5780 
 
To Join Zoom Meeting:  
 
BY COMPUTER/SMARTPHONE: Click on the link above and follow the instructions. Participants from the audience 
will be able to speak during public comment.  There is a hand symbol to push that will allow the meeting moderator 
to see who wants to speak. Please remember to state your name before speaking. The person has three minutes to speak. 
The line will be muted at the end of the three minutes. If using a smartphone, you must download the app. 
  
*BY TELEPHONE: Members of the public who wish to provide public comment on any specific agenda item or during 
general public comment must call the number provided below between 5:15 pm and 5:29 pm. During that time, the 
moderator of the call will ask your name and the agenda item or if you wish to speak to an item not on the Agenda. 
Once that information has been provided, your line will be muted. When it is time to talk during the meeting, the 
moderator will unmute the line, state the person’s name who will be speaking. The person has three minutes to speak. The 
line will be muted at the end of the three minutes. 
 
To participate, dial the following phone number: 1 (253) 215 8782, then there will be a prompt to enter the meeting ID. 
Number Noted Above, and the User ID is the pound (#) sign. 
  
BY ELECTRONIC MAIL: Members of the public may also provide public comment or comment on a specific agenda 
item by sending an email to lreynolds@townofpalisade.org. The email must be received by 2:00 pm on the day of the 
meeting. The Clerk will FORWARD THE EMAIL TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION.  Any member of the 
public who wishes to have a statement read into the Minutes is required to appear (virtually)  at the meeting and make 
said statements to the Commission directly. 

https://zoom.us/j/3320075780
mailto:lreynolds@townofpalisade.org


 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
PALISADE PLANNING COMMISSION 

341 W 7th Palisade Civic Center 
(Also Virtual Participation Via ZOOM) 

May 5, 2021 
  
The regular meeting of the Planning Commission for the Town of Palisade was called to order at 6:00 
pm by Chairman Parker with Commissioners present: Harbaugh, Hull, Wheeler, Prinster, Hamilton and 
Curry attended via Zoom. A quorum was declared. Also, in attendance were Community Development 
Director Brian Rusche and Planning Technician Lydia Reynolds. 
 
AGENDA ADOPTION 
Motion #1 by Commissioner Hull, seconded by Commissioner Harbaugh, to approve the Agenda as 
presented. 
 
A voice vote was requested. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS and PRESENTATIONS 
Community Development Director Brian Rusche announced that there will be a mobile vaccine clinic 
from 10 am to 6 pm on Friday May 7th at the Veteran’s Memorial Park. 
 
MINUTES 
Motion #2 by Commissioner Hull, seconded by Commissioner Prinster, to approve the Minutes of April 
20, 2021. 
 
A voice vote was requested. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 

PRO 2021-5 – Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a drive through restaurant, located at 450 Wine 
Valley Rd. (2937-043-42-002).  

 
STAFF PRESENTATION 
Community Development Director Brian Rusche reported that the Town of Palisade has received a request 
for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a drive-through restaurant located at 450 Wine Valley Road 



(Parcel # 2937-043-42-002). The parcel originally consisted of 4.62 acres but was approved on March 9, 
2021 by the Town for a Minor Subdivision (PRO-2020-33) known as the Wine Valley Subdivision.  Lot 
2 of the Wine Valley Subdivision is 1.02 acres and is the proposed site for a drive-through restaurant of 
approximately 2000 square feet. 
 
The recently amended Land Development Code (LDC) requires a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a 
restaurant with drive-through in the HR (Hospitality Retail) zone district.  A restaurant without a drive-
through is a permitted use. Therefore, the focus of request is on the drive-through component of the 
proposed restaurant. 
 
Staff is asking the Planning Commission to review the request and make a recommendation to the Board 
of Trustees. The Board of Trustees will review the request at their public hearing on May 11, 2021 and 
make a final decision.  
 
Community Development Director Brian Rusche informed the Commission that the applicant has 
submitted a site plan showing the location of the drive-through window in relation to the restaurant 
building, along with associated parking. The proposed restaurant would be approximately 2000 square 
feet, along with an approximately 960 square foot outdoor patio, all of which are located immediately 
adjacent (to the east) of the existing gas station.  Wine Valley Road is a public street and infrastructure, 
including utilities and sidewalks, will be constructed to the east at the expense of the developer (J & L 
Development, LLC) along the Lot 2 frontage.  These improvements, will need to be completed prior to 
receiving a Certificate of Occupancy (CO) for the restaurant.  
 
It is noted by the applicant that there is an existing irrigation line running north-south through the east side 
of the property.  The applicant will work with Dave Voorhees (who also happens to be the nearest 
residential neighbor to the east) and the Mesa County Irrigation District to relocate the line out from under 
parking areas, according to the letter of intent. 
 
Mr. Rusche reviewed the following findings of fact that are used as approval criteria: 
 
1. That the application will not materially endanger the public health or safety if located where 
proposed and developed according to the plans as submitted and approved.  
 
The drive-through restaurant would be located adjacent to an existing auto-oriented use (Golden Gate) 
and accessible via a public street, built to current development standards.  The drive-through window is 
located on the west side of the building, next to an existing semi-truck parking lot and fueling station.  The 
window location provides sufficient queuing for automobiles (a total of 10 vehicles), as required by 
Section 10.01.F.1 – Off-street stacking requirements. A minimum of 20 parking spaces is required and 29 
spaces are provided. In addition, the drive-through exit is physically separated from the rest of the parking 
lot and the patio area, and bicycle parking is also provided. 
 
2. That the application meets all required specifications and conforms to the standards and 
practices of sound land use planning and other applicable regulations.  
 
The application conforms to practices of sound land use planning. Drive-through restaurants, particularly 
during the pandemic, serve the needs of local and regional customers who are unable to physically enter 
a traditional sit-down restaurant due to social-distancing requirements and mandatory public health 
closures.  



The design of the proposed restaurant is unlike a typical “fast-food” establishment.  The low-rise building 
utilizes earth-tone colors, including brick accents, to ensure that it blends into the high-desert landscape.   
 
3. That the application will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting property and 
will not be detrimental to the use or development of adjacent properties or other neighborhood uses.  
 
Mr. Rusche noted that the new Peach Shack is to the south west. The nearest residential property to the 
east (owned by Mr. Voorhees, who as noted earlier manages the irrigation lines in this neighborhood) is 
at least 500 feet from proposed drive-through.  To the south, the residential Willow Tree Subdivision is 
separated by a canal with roads on both sides, a strip of undeveloped commercial property, Wine Valley 
Road (with future sidewalks on both sides), and at least 120 additional feet of setback from the back of 
sidewalk to the drive-through window itself. 
 
The applicant has prepared a traffic study and has submitted it to CDOT, who controls access and traffic 
volumes in the vicinity of the I-70, Exit 42 interchange, for review and approval.  The projected traffic 
volumes at the intersection of Elberta Avenue and Wine Valley Road generated by the existing Golden 
Gate convenience store (who constructed the new intersection) and the proposed drive-through restaurant, 
as well as the soon-to-be completed Peach Shack, could increase to a point 10% higher than the level 
anticipated (and approved) by CDOT in 2017, which is less than the threshold (20% increase) used by 
CDOT to require additional physical improvements to the intersection. 
 
4. That the application will not adversely affect the adopted plans and policies of the Town or violate 
the character of existing standards for development of the adjacent properties. 
 
Prior to annexation of the property in 2017, Mesa County had designated this area around Exit 42 as 
commercial, but it had historically been underutilized and there does not appear to be any agricultural 
production present in the decade between the 2007 Comprehensive Plan and the 2017 annexation and 
development of the Golden Gate convenience store, based upon a review of available aerial photos. 
 
APPLICANT PRESENTATION 
Mark Austin, Austin Civil Group, stated he is representing Jim Cagle who is the owner and developer of 
the project, and is also present to answer any questions. Commissioner Prinster asked about the irrigation 
line. Mr. Austin explained he has had conversations with Mr. Voorhees and they will move the irrigation 
line forward along the east property line to get it out from under the asphalt pavement as much as possible. 
The part of the line that runs under the access point will be new structuraly sound pipe and should perform 
adequately.  
 
Commissioner Prinster asked if they have other locations that have drive-thru window. Mr. Cagle stated 
that they have one in Craig, CO and one in Fruita, CO that have a drive-thru. He noted that the only two 
of his Subways that were up in business last year, were those two. He explained that he and other 
restaurants such as Chick Fil A, McDonalds, Burger King, closed their inside dining and/or lobbies during 
the pandemic. He said there is an industry trend to provide drive-thru options in part due to preparing if 
something like the pandemic should happen again. Discussion continued and Mr. Cagle mentioned he has 
lived here 33 years, started his first Subway on 12th St. in Grand Junction, and he now has 22 locations.  
 
Mr. Cagle explained that during the pandemic, the company was down 60% as a whole, with most stores 
down 10 to 30 percent. He added that the Fruita store was up 3% and Craig store up 5% and 40% of their 
business was through the drive-thru. Commissioner Prinster questioned how the Subway drive-thru model 
works. Mr. Cagle explained that it is a touch screen, with a voice option. He added that you can put your 



phone number in as well, and it will remember what you ordered before. He said the touch screens are 
$24,000, but provide better communication. Commissioner Harbaugh asked where people pull over if the 
order is delayed. Mr. Austin displayed the site plan and showed where a curb cut can be made. Mr. Cagle 
stated that they start the order as people are entering the order on the touch screen and he is not aware of 
any problems where cars back up.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 
 
Motion #3 by Commissioner Prinster and seconded by Commission Hull, to approve item PRO 2021-5 – 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a drive through restaurant, located at 450 Wine Valley Rd. (2937-
043-42-002).  
 
A roll call vote was requested and the vote on the motion was as follows:  
 
YES: Chairman Parker, Commissioners: Prinster, Hamilton, Harbaugh, Hull, Curry and 

Wheeler 
NO:  None 
ABSENT: None 
 
The motion passed unanimously.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion #4 by Commissioner Wheeler and seconded by Commission Prinster, to adjourn.  
 
The motion passed unanimously 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:30 pm. 
 

X
Riley Parker
Planning Commission Chairman

 

X
Lydia Reynolds
Planning Technician

 



PRO 2021-8, TEXT AMENDMENTS TO THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE  

TABLE 6.1 – USE TABLE  

SUMMARY 

Since the beginning of 2021, there have been a few commercial spaces that have come open for lease on Third 
Street and Bower Avenue that have spurred staff to review whether the uses allowed in these areas fit with the 
desires of the Town.  Specifically, there is a limited amount of retail/restaurant space available on Third and Main 
Street, the lack of which could be detrimental to the marketing of Palisade as a tourist destination.  In addition, 
the anticipated relocation of the Food Bank of the Rockies warehouse has prompted an evaluation of the 
warehouse use category within the Town. 

As a result of this review, two primary changes have been identified to Table 6.1 (Use Table) that can be 
summarized as follows: 

1) Warehouse and freight movement has been reclassified as a Conditional Use.  The intent is to give the 
Town the opportunity to restrict the number of trucks utilizing such a facility to a number that can be 
reasonably accommodated on Town streets. 

2) Office uses within the Town Center zone have been limited to only the upper-story of buildings.  The 
intent is to reserve the street level space for uses that would promote shopping and dining within the Town 
Center and, by extension, generate sales tax revenue for the Town. 

3) Other changes that clean up existing uses and/or are consistent with the two goals stated above. 

It is important to note that this change does not affect any of these uses which may already exist under the current 
code (prior to adoption of these amendments) and/or approval by the Town.  Instead, it is part of an ongoing effort 
to clarify and refine the Code so that staff can better respond to business inquiries regarding these uses that reflect 
the desires of the community.  Any existing use that would be affected by these changes would be categorized as 
legal nonconforming and be subject to the standards of Section 12.03 – Nonconforming Uses. 

 

LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE 

Table 6.1, Use Table: 

The following is Table 6.1, Use Table, which details the allowable uses allowed under the Land Development 
Code within specified zoning districts.  Impacted sections are highlighted in RED/BOLD TEXT with new 
additions underlined and removals in strikethrough. 

  













  



Section 4.01.E., Text Amendment Approval Criteria 

In evaluating any proposed amendment of the text of the Land Development Code, the following shall be 
considered: 

1. The extent to which the proposed text amendment is consistent with the remainder of the LDC, including, 
specifically, any purpose and intent statements;  

The proposed text amendment is consistent with the remainder of the LDC. The text amendments simply 
convert some uses permitted by right into conditional uses, allowing for additional review by the Planning 
Commission and Board of Trustees.  Other changes reflect inconsistencies embedded in the code that, if 
changed, would not substantially alter the purpose or intent of the affected zones. 

For reference, a summary of the Town zoning district abbreviations is attached to this report. 

2. The amendment must not adversely affect the public health, safety or general welfare;  

The proposed text amendment would not adversely affect the public health, safety or general welfare; in 
fact, it would allow for a greater review of this question on future projects by the Planning Commission 
and Board of Trustees. 

3. The amendment is necessary because of changed or changing social values, new planning concepts or 
other social or economic conditions in the areas affected;  

The proposed text amendment is specifically designed to address the economic conditions of the Town 
Center area, whereby a shortage of retail and/or restaurant space would impact the tourist draw that 
downtown strives to be.  In addition, the evolution of certain warehouse uses has created additional truck 
traffic through this very downtown area and would benefit from additional review and input by the 
Planning Commission and Board of Trustees to reflect the community’s desires.  

4. The proposed text amendment revises the LDC to comply with state or federal statutes or case law; or  

The proposed text amendment does not go against any state or federal statutes or case law.   

5. The proposed text is found to be consistent with the Town's adopted comprehensive plan. 

The adopted Comprehensive Plan delegates the regulation of individual uses to the Land Development 
Code. The proposed amendment changes the type of review required for some of these uses, and provides 
specific standards for the Town Center zone related to office space.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff is asking the Planning Commission to review the proposed text amendments to the LDC and make a 
recommendation, based on the above approval criteria, to the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees will 
review the application at a public hearing on March 25, 2021.  

ATTACHMENTS 

Palisade Zoning Map 
Zoning Abbreviations 
  



PALISADE ZONING MAP 
 

 
  



ZONING ABBREVIATIONS



 
 
 


	Agenda_Planning Commission_05.18.2021
	DRAFT_Minutes_Planning Commission_05.04.2021
	PRO-2021-08 Use Table Text Amendments_05-18-2021

